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Camp Tabor/Iowa

Drahtpost #14

13 May 1945

 (translated by Paul Nagy)

Branch Camp Tabor/Iowa

In Tabor—a small town in southern Iowa—a tower clock marks every hour, on the hour. The sound of this bell comes from the tower of our camp, which consists of two proud brick buildings in the middle of the town and, in this way, it fulfills a useful purpose for all the neighbors.

When we arrived here some six weeks ago now and took up our quarters in the two buildings of a former college, an assorted pile of dusty old junk hid behind the proud facades. The school, it seems, had remained empty and abandoned for a number of years. The morning after our arrival, the first large contingent left for work at a large nursery garden in Hamburg, 20 miles from here. Thus, from the very first day on, only a very few men were available to sort out the clutter, to cart away the junk and to outfit at least halfway the many rooms, the dining hall and the kitchen. The former lecture hall—with a terraced ascending floor—had to be completely rebuilt to transform it into a large dining room. On the stage, the mess hall manager set up his “oasis” and the office for the kitchen. To be sure, these “cultural facilities” presented us with the greatest of difficulties and, still today, the model we have on hand—a “thundering balcony with flushing water” —makes extraordinary demands of each “visitor’s” sense of balance.

When the 200 men return in the evening after an hour’s travel, they find cozy rooms waiting for them and they have a chance to play soccer or fistball on the meadow and to take a “fence walk”. A gardener works tirelessly every day, preparing beds and tending to a field for kitchen needs; in addition, we also have a potato patch outside the camp.

Our off-site work—which presently engages almost the entire camp personnel—fills the days completely, and we are ever drawn to our beds (especially after a good swig to dispel the ever-looming worries! What worries many people must have!)

To describe the many small, peripheral events which occur during our otherwise indistinguishable days would lead too far afield—although these are exactly the “plums” that make the “pie” tasty and that satisfy our necessary “appetite”, so that it will not one day remain stuck in our throats. So, may there always be enough of these “plums” every day to satisfy the needs of our small camp—particularly on the playing field outside the camp at the Sunday soccer game, which even this “reporter” would not like to miss.

Lagerzeitung #1

21 July 1945

 (translated by Alex J. Kay)

Contributions to the International Red Cross

Upon an earlier suggestion a voluntary collection for the International Red Cross was taken among our comrades at Camp Algona and all its branch camps, with the following results.

Base Camp Algona/Iowa:


$1,793.65

Branch Camp Fairmont/Minnesota:

$   849.19

Branch Camp Bena/Minnesota:


$   239.50

Branch Camp Faribault/Minnesota:

$   438.25

Branch Camp St. Charles/Minnesota:

$   353.75

Branch Camp Eldora/Iowa:


$   805.00

Branch Camp Tabor/Iowa:


$   312.85

Branch Camp Charles City/Iowa:

$   111.50

Branch Camp Clinton/Iowa:


$   217.16

Branch Camp Shenandoah/Iowa:

$   574.25

Branch Camp Yankton/South Dakota:

$   205.50

Branch Camp Muscatine/Iowa:


$   363.00

Branch Camp Owatonna/Minnesota:

$   555.33

The remaining results aren’t yet in; we’ll publish them in the next number.

Transfers to and from Camp Algona

Arrivals: 
9 July

  50 men from Eldora/Iowa

Departures:
29 June

115 men to New Ulm/Minnesota



29 June

  62 men to Owatonna/Minnesota



2 July

  30 men to St. Charles/Minnesota



6 July

  30 men to Faribault/Minnesota



10 July

  25 men to Fairmont/Minnesota



10 July

  30 men to New Ulm/Minnesota



10 July

  20 men to Tabor/Iowa



10 July

  40 men to Ortonville/Minnesota

